
 

PLAN COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA 

MONDAY, JUNE 24, 2024 AT 4:30 PM 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, SECOND FLOOR, MUNICIPAL BUILDING, 106 JONES STREET, 
WATERTOWN, WI 53094 

Virtual Meeting 
Info: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/2371460557?pwd=UXjvqLXKCdw12jl4jl1b7GlUPaClat.1&omn=851675
10892 or call: 1-646-931-3860 and use Meeting ID: 237 146 0557  Passcode: 144391   

All public participants’ devices will be muted during the meeting except during the public comment 
period. 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A. Review and take action: Site Plan Review minutes dated June 10, 2024 

3. BUSINESS 

A. Conduct public hearing: 510 Cole Street – Conditional Use Permit (CUP) request for Indoor 
Institutional for a Catholic high school under Section § 550-25B(2)(d) 

B. Review and take action: 510 Cole Street – Conditional Use Permit (CUP) request for Indoor 
Institutional for a Catholic high school under Section § 550-25B(2)(d) 

C. Review and take action: 1014 S. Second Street – Preliminary Certified Survey Map (CSM) 
Review) 

D. Review and take action: 1819 River Drive 50’ x 60’ Airplane Hangar 

E. Review and take action: 1832 River Drive 66’ x 64’ Airplane Hangar 

F. Initial Review and take action:  Amend Hunter Oaks Planned Unit Development – General 
Development Plan (PUD-GDP) 

G. Review and make recommendation: Jones Street Discontinuance of Public Way 

H. Review and make recommendation: Gremar, LLC Annexation recommendation of Ordinance 
and scheduling public hearing 

4. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Persons requiring other reasonable accommodations for any of the above meetings, may contact the 
office of the City Clerk at mdunneisen@watertownwi.gov, phone 920-262-4006 

 
A quorum of any City of Watertown Council, Committee, Board, Commission, or other body, may be 

present at this meeting for observing and gathering of information only 

1

mailto:mdunneisen@watertownwi.gov


SITE PLAN REVIEW COMMITTEE 
June 10, 2024 

 
The Site Plan Review Committee met on the above date at 1:30 P.M. in the Council Chambers on the second floor of City Hall.  The 
following members were present:  Brian Zirbes of Building, Safety & Zoning; Doug Zwieg of Building, Safety & Zoning; Mayor Emily 
McFarland; Tanya Reyen of the Fire Department; Andrew Beyer of the Engineering Department; Maureen McBroom of Stormwater; 
Stacy Winkelman of the Street Department; Tim Hayden of the Water Department; Jeff Meloy of the Police Department; Kristine 
Butteris of Park & Rec; and Strategic Initiatives and Development Coordinator Mason Becker. Also in attendance were Nikki 
Zimmerman, David Hoefgen of American Rentals; Andrew Schmidt; Tracy Schroeder of GWCHF; Bert Zenker of MSI General; Nate 
Peters of GWCHF; Abby Filali of Go Riteway; Kurt Liebenow of Watertown Moravian Church; and Jennifer Getz of St. Jude Academy. 
Virtually present were Casy Clickner, Matt Sokol, Bendan Kons, Jim Zuern, and Judy Buchs. 
 

1. Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order by Chairperson Brian Zirbes. 
 
A. Roll Call 

Roll call was completed. 
 

2. Approval of Minutes 
A. Review and take action: Site Plan Review Minutes Dated May 13, 2204 

Motion was made by Doug Zwieg and seconded by Stacy Winkelman to approve the minutes as submitted. Unanimously 
approved. 

 
3. Business 
 

A. Review and take action: 700 Hoffman Drive Preliminary Plat 
The applicant was present to explain the project. This is  

 
The following was presented by staff: 
 

Building:  No comments  
   
  Fire:  The radius looks good. The hydrants will have to be moved to the road.  
 

Stormwater: Deferred to Andrew Beyer of the Engineering Department. 
 
Engineering: A sanitary sewer easement appears to exist. This should be verified. Language to be added to the  

plat regarding location of residential lots within 500’ of city’s wastewater treatment facilities  
(mechanical treatment facilities, effluent holdings and polishing ponds) and within 1000’ of sludge  
holding facilities and spray irrigation systems. Draft language to be provided by city for inclusion in  
plat. 

 
Drainage easements for lots and best management practices need to be shown on plat – see  
Section 545-34 

 
If high groundwater was encountered during borings, need to be noted on the plat – see Section 
545-34(D) 

 
Will public access easements be included in plat for sidewalk/paths not in right-of-way? Outlot  
space would have access. 
 

Streets and Solid Waste: No comments. 
 
Parks:   No comments. 

 
  Water/Wastewater: No comments. 
 
  Mayor:   No comments. 
 
  Police:    No comments. 
 

Zoning:    The Department of Administration submitted their letter. They directed the alterations be  
made to the legal description and the Hoffman Drive right-of-way that adjoins the  
subdivision must be clearly shown and identified on the final plat. Jefferson County also  
noted some changes that needed to be made. 

 
Motion was made by Doug Zwieg and seconded by Maureen McBroom to move this item onto Plan Commission  
contingent upon: 
 
-The review & approval of the stormwater/erosion control permit. Note that Hoffman Drive is one ingress/egress to  
Wastewater Treatment Facility. 
-Inclusion of language to be added to the plat regarding location of residential lots within 500’ of city’s wastewater  

2

Section 2, Item A.



treatment facilities (mechanical treatment facilities, effluent holdings and polishing ponds) and within 1000’ of sludge  
holding facilities and spray irrigation systems.  
-Hydrants to be moved within the right of way. 

 
Unanimously approved. 

 
B. Review and take action: 1800 S. Church Street – Site/Building Review  

Brendan Kons was present virtually to explain the project. This is for improvements to the building, add exterior storage 
and a fuel depot. 

 
The following was presented by staff: 

 
Building:  The plans will have to go to State for approval.  

  
 Fire:  No comments.  
 

Stormwater: The project will require an erosion control & stormwater permit. Check with DNR to verify if any 
permits will be required through them. 

 
 Engineering:  No comments.  
 
 Streets and Solid Waste: No comments. 
 
 Parks:   No comments. 
 
 Water/Wastewater: No comments. 
 
 Mayor:   The proposal looks very nice and the   
 
 Police:   No comments. 
 

Zoning:    No comments. 
 

  Motion was made by Doug Zwieg, seconded by Mayor McFarland to move this item to Plan Commission contingent  
upon: 

 
  -The erosion control permit review and approval. 
 
  Unanimously approved. 
 

C. Review and take action: 1819 River Drive – 50’ x 60’ airplane hangar 
  

The applicant David Hoefgen was present to explain the project. This is for a 50’ x 60’ airplane hangar post-frame 
construction. White roof, white sides for one airplane. Contractors will be putting in sewer/water & electric and will pull 
their own permits for this work. 

 
The following was presented by staff: 

 
Building:   A residential building permit will be required along with a separate set of plans and a  

digital copy of the plan set.  
  
 Fire:   No comments. Email conversations have occurred regarding the location of the hydrant  

location. 
 
 Stormwater:  An erosion control permit will be required. 
 
 Engineering:  No comments. 
 

Streets and Solid Waste: No comments. 
 
 Parks:   No comments. 
 
 Water/Wastewater: No comments. 
 
 Mayor:   No comments. 
 
 Police:   No comments.  
 
 Zoning:    No comments. 
 

  Motion was made by Doug Zwieg, seconded by Mayor McFarland to forward this item to Plan Commission contingent  
upon review & approval of the erosion control permit and submittal and approval of the building permit. 

3

Section 2, Item A.



 
  Unanimously approved. 
 

D. Review and take action: 1832 River Drive – 66’ x 64’ airplane hangar 
  

 Andrew Schmidt was present to explain the project. This is for a 66’ x 64’ private-use airplane hangar. 
 

The following was presented by staff: 
 

Building:   A residential building permit will be required along with a separate set of plans and a  
digital copy of the plan set.  

 
 Fire:   No comment. 
 
 Stormwater:  An erosion control permit will be required. There is a drainage swale next to the road. The  

plans should reflect this. 
 
  Engineering:  No comments. 

 
 Streets and Solid Waste: No comments. 
 
 Parks:   No comments. 
 
 Water/Wastewater: No comments. 
 
 Mayor:   No comments. 
 
 Police:   No comments. 
 
 Zoning:    No comments. 
 

  Motion was made by Doug Zwieg, seconded by Mayor McFarland to forward this item to Plan Commission contingent  
upon review & approval of the erosion control permit and submittal and approval of the building permit. 

 
  Unanimously approved. 
 

E. Review and take action: 1901 Market Way – fireworks sales 
  

Matt Sokol was present virtually to explain the project. This is for fireworks sales at the Wal-Mart parking lot, as have been 
completed in previous years. 

 
The following was presented by staff: 

 
Building:   No comments.  

  
 Fire:   Verified there will be extinguishers and the tent must be fireproof.  
 
 Stormwater:  No comments. 
 
 Engineering:  No comments. 
 
 Streets and Solid Waste: No comments. 
 
 Parks:   No comments. 
 
 Water/Wastewater: No comments. 
 
 Mayor:   No comments.   
 
 Police:   No comments. 
 
 Zoning:    No comments. 
 

  Motion was made by Doug Zwieg, seconded by Kristine Butteris to approve this item contingent upon fire  
extinguishers always being onsite and the fireproof tent. 

 
  Unanimously approved. 
 

F. Review and take action: 510 Cole Street – School Use 
  

Jennifer Getz was present to explain the project. This is for a proposed Catholic High School at Watertown Moravian  
Church on the third floor. 

4

Section 2, Item A.



 
The following was presented by staff: 

 
Building:   Make sure all exit lights are working properly. 

  
 Fire:   Ensure there are fire extinguishers on the third floor. 
 
 Stormwater:  No comments. 
 
 Engineering:  No comments. 
 

Streets and Solid Waste: Private service for garbage and recycling would have to be obtained. 
 
 Parks:   No comments. 
 
 Water/Wastewater: No comments. 
 
 Mayor:   No comments. 
 
 Police:   No comments. 
 

Zoning:    No comments. 
 

  Motion was made by Doug Zwieg, seconded by Maureen McBroom to approve this item contingent upon:  
 

-The exit lights 
-Fire extinguishers 
-Private garbage 

 
  Unanimously approved with Mayor McFarland abstaining. 
 

G. Review and take action: 1532 S. Church Street & 1536 S. Church Street – Group Development 
  

  This is for a condo development. The existing building would be split into 2 condo units owned by 2 separate businesses.  
 

The following was presented by staff: 
 

Building:   Stamped, engineered plans will be needed for any alterations. 
  
 Fire:   No comments. 
 
 Stormwater:  There is an easement with the city for the parking area immediately north of the building.  

There is a retaining wall and land in this area. The easement expires in 2027 and  
additional discussions will have to occur prior to the end of this lease. How will this be  
dealt with 2 owners. Will there be a condo association?  This will be addressed in the  
condo declaration which has not yet been recorded. The unit owners will each have a  
vote. The easement has not yet been discussed but it will likely go with the condo  
association.  

 
 Engineering:  No comments. 
 

Streets and Solid Waste: No comments. 
 
 Parks:   No comments. 
 
 Water/Wastewater: No comments. 
 
 Mayor:   No comments. 
 
 Police:   No comments. 
 
 Zoning:    No comments. 
 

  Motion was made by Doug Zwieg, seconded by Stacy Winkelman  to approve this item contingent upon:  
 

-Stamped, engineered plans for any renovations. 
-Notation of the easement lease 

 
  Unanimously approved. 
 
 
 

5

Section 2, Item A.



 
H. Review and take action: 211 Hiawatha Street – Site/Building Review 
  

Bert Zenker of MSI was present to explain the project. A portion of the building will be torn down along with another 
building onsite and an addition will occur to the existing portion of the structure. Parking will be redone as well. There is 
also a retention area for surface drainage onsite. 

 
The following was presented by staff: 

 
Building:   A demolition permit will be required to be submitted to the Building, Safety, & Zoning.  

Approvals can be done in house, but stamped plans will be required. 
  
 Fire:   Asked about fire protection. This is not required and that will be noted on the plan set. 
 
 Stormwater:  An erosion control and stormwater permit will be required. There are a few items that still  

need to be submitted.  
 
 Engineering:  No comments. 
 

Streets and Solid Waste: No comments. 
 
 Parks:   No comments. 
 
 Water/Wastewater: No comments. 
 
 Mayor:   No comments. 
 
 Police:   No comments.  
 
 Zoning:    No comments. 
 

  Motion was made by Doug Zwieg, seconded by Andrew Beyer to approve this item contingent upon:  
 

-Review and approval of the erosion control & stormwater permit.  
-Stamped plans for any renovation/remodel work. 
-Submittal and approval of the demolition permit. 

 
 
  Unanimously approved. 

 
 

4. Adjournment 
Motion was made by Doug Zwieg and seconded by Stacy Winkelman to adjourn.  Unanimously approved. 

 
Respectfully submitted,   

Nikki Zimmerman 
Recording Secretary 

 
NOTE: These minutes are uncorrected, and any corrections made thereto will be noted in the proceedings at which these 
minutes are approved. 

6

Section 2, Item A.



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 

 

In accordance with Wis. Stat. § 62.23(7)(de) and Section § 550-142E(1) of the City of Watertown Municipal Code, a notice is hereby 

given by the Plan Commission of the City of Watertown, Wisconsin, that a public hearing will be held on the 24th day of June, 2024 

at 4:30 P.M., or shortly thereafter, in the Council Chambers of the Municipal Building, 106 Jones Street, Watertown, Wisconsin. 

 

This public hearing will be to consider the request of St. Jude Academy, Inc. (applicant) and Watertown Moravian Church (owner) 

for a Conditional Use Permit for Indoor Institutional under Section § 550-25B(2)(d).  They are proposing a Catholic high school on 

the premises.  510 Cole Street is zoned TR-6, Two-Family Residential, is located in Jefferson County, Wisconsin (PIN: 291-0815-

0412-013), and is further described as follows: 

The South half of Lot One (1) in Block Fifty-eight (58), and the East 56 feet of the South half  

of Lot Two (2) in Block Fifty-eight (58) of Cole, Bailey & Co.’s plat of the Village, now City of Watertown, 

 as recorded in the office of the Register of Deeds of Jefferson County, Wisconsin. 

 

All persons wishing to be heard are invited to be present. 

 

CITY OF WATERTOWN 

Brian Zirbes 

Zoning & Floodplain Administrator 

 

BZ/nmz 

 

PUBLISH: June 10, 2024 

          and 

  June 17, 2024 

(BLOCK AD)  

7

Section 3, Item A.



 

106 Jones Street • P.O. Box 477 • Watertown, WI 53094-0477 • Phone 920.262.4060 

Opportunity Runs Through It 
 
 

BUILDING, SAFETY & ZONING DEPARTMENT 

Main Office 

920-262-4060 

Main Office 

920-262-4060 

Nikki Zimmerman 

920-262-4045 

Doug Zwieg 

920-262-4062 

Brian Zirbes 

920-262-4041 

Dell Zwieg 

920-262-4042 

Dennis Quest 

920-262-4061 

 

92 

Mark Hady 

920-342-0986 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 

TO:   Plan Commission 

DATE: June 24, 2024 

SUBJECT: 510 Cole Street, Conditional Use Permit - CUP 

 

A request by Jenifer Getz, agent for St. Jude Academy Inc, for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for Indoor 

Institutional.  Parcel PIN(s):  291-0815-0412-013 

 

SITE DETAILS: 

Acres:  0.43 

Current Zoning: Two-Family Residential (TR-6) 

Existing Land Use: Church and School 

Future Land Use Designation: Institutional  

 

BACKGROUND AND APPLICATION DESCRIPTION: 

The applicant is seeking approval of a conditional use permit for ‘Indoor Institutional’ for St. Jude Academy, a 

Catholic High School.  The school will utilize an existing school building on the Watertown Moravian Church 

Campus and teach grades 9 through 12.  Maximum enrollment for school will be capped at 75 students.  Hours 

of operation will be 8:30am to 3:30pm Monday through Friday.  Parking and drop off will occur in the parking lot 

on the western end of the property.  No bus service will be utilized.  

 

STAFF EVALAUATION: 

 

Site Plan Review Committee: 

See Minutes of June 10, 2024. 

 

Land Use and Zoning: 

 

1. Within the Two-Family Residential (TR-6) Zoning District ‘Indoor Institutional’ is a principal land use 

permitted as a Conditional Use [per § 550-25B(2)(d)]. ‘Indoor Institutional’ includes all indoor public and not-

for-profit schools, colleges, and churches. [per § 550-51C].  

 

Applicable regulations for ‘Indoor Institutional’ land uses include the following: [per § 550-51C(1)] 

• Shall be located with primary vehicular access on a collector or arterial street.   

− North Fourth Street is located one-half a block to the west of the parking area and East Cady St is 

located one-half a block to the south providing vehicular access to an arterial/collector street. 

• Shall provide off-street passenger loading area if the majority of the users will be children (as in the 

case of a school, church, library or similar land use). 

− Parking and drop off will occur in the parking lot on the western end of the property. 

• All structures shall be located a minimum of 50 feet from any residentially zoned property. 

− The existing land use of the site is institutional with a school building and is residentially zoned.  

This regulation does not apply. 

8

Section 3, Item B.



 

106 Jones Street • P.O. Box 477 • Watertown, WI 53094-0477 • Phone 920.262.4060 

Opportunity Runs Through It 
 
 

2. Parking Requirements: Senior high: one space per teacher and staff member, plus one space per five non-

bused students. [per § 550-51C(2)(g)].  The existing parking lot has 30 stalls and exceeds the parking 

requirements. 

3. Lighting of structures, parking areas, and traffic circulation areas will utilize existing lighting fixtures.  

Lighting fixtures existing prior to the effective date of the zoning code are considered legal conforming 

uses [per § 550-110D(6)]. 

 

WISCONSIN STATUES: 

All Conditional Use Permits are subject to the requirements of Wisconsin Act 67. 
 

Under 2017 Wisconsin Act 67:  Section 16. 62.23 (7) (de) Conditional Use Permits.  

 

1. 62.23 (7) (de)(1) In this paragraph: 

a. “Conditional use” means a use allowed under a conditional use permit, special exception, or other special zoning permission issued by 

a city, but does not include a variance.  

b. “Substantial evidence” means facts and information, other than merely personal preferences or speculation, directly pertaining to the 

requirements and conditions an applicant must meet to obtain a conditional use permit and that reasonable persons would accept in 

support of a conclusion.  

 

2. 62.23 (7) (de)(2) 

a. If an applicant for a conditional use permit meets or agrees to meet all of the requirements and conditions specified in the city 

ordinance or those imposed by the city zoning board, the city shall grant the conditional use permit. Any condition imposed must be 

related to the purpose of the ordinance and be based on substantial evidence.  

b. The requirements and conditions described under subd. 2. a. must be reasonable and, to the extent practicable, measurable and may 

include conditions such as the permit’s duration, transfer, or renewal. The applicant must demonstrate that the application and all 

requirements and conditions established by the city relating to the conditional use are or shall be satisfied, both of which must be 

supported by substantial evidence. The city’s decision to approve or deny the permit must be supported by substantial evidence.  

 

3. 62.23 (7) (de)(3) 

Upon receipt of a conditional use permit application and following publication in the city of a class 2 notice under ch. 985, the city shall 

hold a public hearing on the application.  

 

3. 62.23 (7) (de)(4) 

Once granted, a conditional use permit shall remain in effect as long as the conditions upon which the permit was issued are followed, 

but the city may impose conditions such as the permit’s duration, transfer, or renewal, in addition to any other conditions specified in the 

zoning ordinance or by the city zoning board.  

  

4. 62.23 (7) (de)(5) 

If a city denies a person’s conditional use permit application, the person may appeal the decision to the circuit court under the 

procedures contained in par. (e) 10. 
 

9

Section 3, Item B.



 

106 Jones Street • P.O. Box 477 • Watertown, WI 53094-0477 • Phone 920.262.4060 

Opportunity Runs Through It 
 
 

PLAN COMMISSION DECISIONS: 

 

Indoor Institutional 

Land Use Criteria 

Applicant 

Provided 

Substantial 

Evidence 

Opponent 

Provided 

Substantial 

Evidence 

PC Finds 

Standards Met 

 

1. Shall be located with primary vehicular access on a 

collector or arterial street.  

  

Yes No Yes No Yes No 

2. Shall provide off-street passenger loading area if the 

majority of the users will be children (as in the case of 

a school, church, library or similar land use). 

  

Yes No Yes No Yes No 

3. All structures shall be located a minimum of 50 feet 

from any residentially zoned property. 

 

Yes No Yes No Yes No 

4. Parking Requirements: Senior high: one space per 

teacher and staff member, plus one space per five 

non-bused students. 

Yes No Yes No Yes No 

 

If Plan Commission answers “no” to any of the questions, above, the CU permit must be denied.  Otherwise, 

proceed to the conditions of approval. 

 

 

PLAN COMMISSION OPTIONS: 

The following are possible options for the Plan Commission: 

1. Deny the Conditional Use Permit, based on failure to provide substantial evidence to meet one or more of 

the regulatory standards. 

2. Approve the Conditional Use Permit without conditions, based on successfully providing substantial 

evidence of regulatory compliance. 

3. Approve the Conditional Use Permit with conditions as identified by the Plan Commission. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

• Application materials 

 

 

10

Section 3, Item B.



11

Section 3, Item B.



12

Section 3, Item B.



13

Section 3, Item B.



14

Section 3, Item B.



15

Section 3, Item B.



16

Section 3, Item B.



510 Cole Street

Printed on: May 28, 2024

DISCLA IMER: This map is not a  substitute for an actual  field  survey or  onsite  investigation.
The accuracy of th is map is limi ted to the quali ty  o f the records from which it was assembled.
Other inherent inacc uracies occur during the compi lation process.
City of Watertown makes no warranty whatsoever concerning this information.

City of Watertown Geographic Information System

Author: Private User

Parcels

Override 1

Parcels

City Limits

Street Centerlines w/Labels
±

Scale: 1 inch = 80 feet
SCALE BAR = 1"

17

Section 3, Item B.



!
!

!

!

!

!

! ! !

!

! !

!
!

!
!

!

!!

! !

!

!

!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!
! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! !
! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! ! !

!
!

!

!

!
!

! ! !

!
!

!
!

!

!!

!
!

!
!

!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

! !
!

!

!

!!!

!

!
!

!
! !

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

! ! !
!

! ! !

! !

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

! !

!
!

!!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!
!

!!!

!
!

!
!

!

!!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!

!

! !

!
!

! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

! !
!

!
!

!

! ! !

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!!!!!!!

!
!

!

!
!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!!!

!
!

!

!

!!
!

!!

!
!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

! !

!

! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! !

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!!!! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!!!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!!
!

!
!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
! !

!

! !
!

!

!

!

! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
! !

!

!

!

!

! ! !

!
!

!

!!!
!
!!

!!!
!
! !

!! !

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!
!

!
!!

!!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!!

!
!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!! !!! !!! !!!

!
!!

!! !
! !
!

!!!
!!
!

!!!
! !
!

!! !!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!!!!!!!!
!!
!

!
!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!

!
!
!!

!

!

!!
!!
!

!
!!

!!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!!

!!!
!!
!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!!

!!
!

!!!

!!!
!!
!

!!!

!
!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!!!

!!
!

!!
!

!!!
!!
!

!
!!

!
!!

!!!
!!
!

!
!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!!

!!
!

!!
!

! !
!

!!!
!!!

!
!!

!!
!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!!!!
!

!!!!!!!!
!

!!!
!!
!

!!! !
! !

!! !
!
! !

! !!
!
!!

!!!

!!!!!!!

!!
!
!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!
!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!
!

!!! !!! !!! !!!

!!!! !!!!

!!!

!

!!!

!!
!

!!!
!! !!!

!
!
!!

!!!!

!!

!!
! !!! !!! !!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!!

Town of Emmet
Town of Shields

Town of Watertown

Town of Watertown

Jefferson
County

Dodge
County

Silver Creek

Rock River

Ro
ck

Ri
ver

Ro
ck

River

W
elsh Rd

High Rd

Provimi Rd

Ha
nc

oc
k R

d

S 1
2t

h S
t

Gopher Hill Rd

Church St

Beryl Dr

Clark St

S 3
rd

 St

Rive
r D

r

Western AveGypsy Rd

So
ut

h R
d

S W
ate

r S
t

W Main St

West St

Summit Ave

N 4th St

Milfo
rd St

Air Park Dr

2n
dS

tre
et

RdN W
ater St

Hall St

Turf
Dr

Juneau St

Hilltop Rd

Ai
rp

or
t R

d

Horseshoe Rd

JeffersonRd

River Rd

")E

")CW

UV16

")D

")M

")Q

")K

")T

")A

")R

UV26

")E

")X

UV19

")Y

2

7

1

20 23

29

22

26

11

27

35

18

19

1415

30

21

6

28

13

12

20

36

25

19

24

22 2321

151617
14

18

24

31

13

24

13

8

10

5

Shapes on map represent general recommendations for future land use. 
Actual boundaries between different land use types and associated zoning 
districts may vary somewhat from representations on this map. Not all 
lands shown in a future developed land use category are immediately 
appropriate for development, rezoning, or subdivision. 
Environmental Corridors depicted on this map use generalized boundaries
of  environmental features identified by the DNR. Actual Environmental 
Corridor boundaries are to be refined through detailed on-site investigation.

Future Land Use
Urban Area

Map
6b

City of Watertown Comprehensive Plan
Land Use Categories

Shaping places, shaping change

VANDEWALLE &ASSOCIATES INC.

*Each "Planned Mixed Use Area"
  may include mix of:
     1. Office
     2. Multi-Family Residential
     3. Mixed Industrial
     4. Commerical Services/Retail
     5. Institutional
     6. Parks & Recreation

Planned Neighborhood** Draft: August 7, 2019
Source:  WisDNR, FEMA,

              City of Watertown,
              Dodge Co. LIO &

              Jefferson Co. LIO, V&A
Institutional

**"Planned Neighborhoods" should include a mix
   of the following:
     1. Single-Family - Sewered (predominant land use)
     2. Two-family Residential
     3. Multi-Family Residential
     4. Institutional
     5. Neighborhood Mixed Use
     6. Parks & Recreation

Agricultural

Multi-Family Residential

Planned Mixed Use*

Rights-of-Way
Neighborhood Mixed Use

Single-Family Residential - Unsewered
Single-Family Residential - Sewered
Two-Family Residential

Airport .0 0.5 10.25
Miles

!!
!

!!! !!

!

!!!!!! City Growth Area

!!
!

!!! !!

!

!!!!!! City Periphery Areas

City/Town IGA**

City of Watertown
Growth Area*

City of Watertown
And Town of Emmet
Intergovernmental 

Agreement**

1
2

345
6

1 2
345

6

Parks & Recreation
Environmental Corridor
Surface Water

Mixed Industrial

Central Mixed Use
Riverside Mixed Use***

***Each "Riverside Mixed Use Area"
  may include mix of:
     1. Office
     2. Single-Family - Sewered
     3. Two-Family Residential
     4. Multi-Family Residential
     5. Commerical Services/Retail
     6. Institutional
     7. Parks & Recreation

1 2
3
456

7

City of Watertown
Town Boundary! !

Parcel
Railroad

! ! Watertown Urban Service Area
Watertown Long Range Growth Area

Maximum Building Elevation
b/t 865 and 968 ft

Airport Height Limitations

Maximum Building Elevation
b/t 968 and 1005 ft

18

Section 3, Item B.

BZirbes
Callout
510 Cole Street



106 Jones Street • P.O. Box 477 • Watertown, WI 53094-0477 • Phone 920.262.4060 

Opportunity Runs Through It 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

TO:    Plan Commission 

DATE:  June 24th, 2024 

SUBJECT: 1014 S Second Street – Preliminary Certified Survey Map (CSM) 

 

A request by Loeb & Company LLP to create a Certified Survey Map (CSM) within the City of Watertown. 

Parcel PIN(s): 291-0815-0431-051 

 

SITE DETAILS: 

Parent Parcel Acres: 2.38 acres 

Proposed Lot Size(s): Lot 1 – 0.76 acres, Lot 2 – 1.62 acres 

Jurisdiction: City of Watertown 

 

BACKGROUND & APPLICATION DESCRIPTION: 

The applicant is proposing to create a two lot CSM.  The proposed lots are located within the Airport 

Approach Protection Zone with a maximum elevation of 968 feet above mean sea level for all buildings 

and vegetation. A note indicating this elevation has been added to the CSM.  The existing ROW for S. 

Second Street is sufficient in this location.  

 

PLAN COMMISSION OPTIONS: 

 

The following possible options for the Plan Commission: 

1. Deny the preliminary CSM. 

2. Approve the preliminary CSM without conditions. 

3. Approve the preliminary CSM with other conditions as identified by the City of Watertown Plan 

Commission: 

a. The CSM signature page shall contain signature lines for both the Plan Commission 

Chairperson/Mayor and the City Clerk. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 

• Application materials. 
 

 

 

BUILDING, SAFETY & ZONING DEPARTMENT 

 

Main Office Brian Zirbes Mark Hady 

920-262-4060 920-262-4041 920-342-0986 

 

Nikki Zimmerman Dell Zwieg 

920-262-4045 920-262-4042 

 

Doug Zwieg Dennis Quest 

920-262-4062 920-262-4061 

19

Section 3, Item C.



20

Section 3, Item C.



21

Section 3, Item C.



22

Section 3, Item C.



1014 S Second St

Printed on: June 13, 2024

DISCLA IMER: This map is not a  substitute for an actual  field  survey or  onsite  investigation.
The accuracy of th is map is limi ted to the quali ty  o f the records from which it was assembled.
Other inherent inacc uracies occur during the compi lation process.
City of Watertown makes no warranty whatsoever concerning this information.

City of Watertown Geographic Information System

Author: Private User

Parcel Updated

Override 1

Parcel Updated

Addresses

Acres

City Limits

±
Scale: 1 inch = 100 feet

SCALE BAR = 1"
23

Section 3, Item C.



!
!

!

!

!

!

! ! !

!

! !

!
!

!
!

!

!!

! !

!

!

!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!
! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! !
! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! ! !

!
!

!

!

!
!

! ! !

!
!

!
!

!

!!

!
!

!
!

!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

! !
!

!

!

!!!

!

!
!

!
! !

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

! ! !
!

! ! !

! !

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

! !

!
!

!!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!
!

!!!

!
!

!
!

!

!!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!

!

! !

!
!

! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

! !
!

!
!

!

! ! !

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!!!!!!!

!
!

!

!
!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!!!

!
!

!

!

!!
!

!!

!
!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

! !

!

! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! !

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!!!! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!!!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!!
!

!
!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
! !

!

! !
!

!

!

!

! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
! !

!

!

!

!

! ! !

!
!

!

!!!
!
!!

!!!
!
! !

!! !

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!
!

!
!!

!!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!!

!
!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!! !!! !!! !!!

!
!!

!! !
! !
!

!!!
!!
!

!!!
! !
!

!! !!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!!!!!!!!
!!
!

!
!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!

!
!
!!

!

!

!!
!!
!

!
!!

!!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!!

!!!
!!
!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!!

!!
!

!!!

!!!
!!
!

!!!

!
!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!!!

!!
!

!!
!

!!!
!!
!

!
!!

!
!!

!!!
!!
!

!
!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!!

!!
!

!!
!

! !
!

!!!
!!!

!
!!

!!
!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!!!!
!

!!!!!!!!
!

!!!
!!
!

!!! !
! !

!! !
!
! !

! !!
!
!!

!!!

!!!!!!!

!!
!
!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!
!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!
!

!!! !!! !!! !!!

!!!! !!!!

!!!

!

!!!

!!
!

!!!
!! !!!

!
!
!!

!!!!

!!

!!
! !!! !!! !!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!!

Town of Emmet
Town of Shields

Town of Watertown

Town of Watertown

Jefferson
County

Dodge
County

Silver Creek

Rock River

Ro
ck

Ri
ver

Ro
ck

River

W
elsh Rd

High Rd

Provimi Rd

Ha
nc

oc
k R

d

S 1
2t

h S
t

Gopher Hill Rd

Church St

Beryl Dr

Clark St

S 3
rd

 St

Rive
r D

r

Western AveGypsy Rd

So
ut

h R
d

S W
ate

r S
t

W Main St

West St

Summit Ave

N 4th St

Milfo
rd St

Air Park Dr

2n
dS

tre
et

RdN W
ater St

Hall St

Turf
Dr

Juneau St

Hilltop Rd

Ai
rp

or
t R

d

Horseshoe Rd

JeffersonRd

River Rd

")E

")CW

UV16

")D

")M

")Q

")K

")T

")A

")R

UV26

")E

")X

UV19

")Y

2

7

1

20 23

29

22

26

11

27

35

18

19

1415

30

21

6

28

13

12

20

36

25

19

24

22 2321

151617
14

18

24

31

13

24

13

8

10

5

Shapes on map represent general recommendations for future land use. 
Actual boundaries between different land use types and associated zoning 
districts may vary somewhat from representations on this map. Not all 
lands shown in a future developed land use category are immediately 
appropriate for development, rezoning, or subdivision. 
Environmental Corridors depicted on this map use generalized boundaries
of  environmental features identified by the DNR. Actual Environmental 
Corridor boundaries are to be refined through detailed on-site investigation.

Future Land Use
Urban Area

Map
6b

City of Watertown Comprehensive Plan
Land Use Categories

Shaping places, shaping change

VANDEWALLE &ASSOCIATES INC.

*Each "Planned Mixed Use Area"
  may include mix of:
     1. Office
     2. Multi-Family Residential
     3. Mixed Industrial
     4. Commerical Services/Retail
     5. Institutional
     6. Parks & Recreation

Planned Neighborhood** Draft: August 7, 2019
Source:  WisDNR, FEMA,

              City of Watertown,
              Dodge Co. LIO &

              Jefferson Co. LIO, V&A
Institutional

**"Planned Neighborhoods" should include a mix
   of the following:
     1. Single-Family - Sewered (predominant land use)
     2. Two-family Residential
     3. Multi-Family Residential
     4. Institutional
     5. Neighborhood Mixed Use
     6. Parks & Recreation

Agricultural

Multi-Family Residential

Planned Mixed Use*

Rights-of-Way
Neighborhood Mixed Use

Single-Family Residential - Unsewered
Single-Family Residential - Sewered
Two-Family Residential

Airport .0 0.5 10.25
Miles

!!
!

!!! !!

!

!!!!!! City Growth Area

!!
!

!!! !!

!

!!!!!! City Periphery Areas

City/Town IGA**

City of Watertown
Growth Area*

City of Watertown
And Town of Emmet
Intergovernmental 

Agreement**

1
2

345
6

1 2
345

6

Parks & Recreation
Environmental Corridor
Surface Water

Mixed Industrial

Central Mixed Use
Riverside Mixed Use***

***Each "Riverside Mixed Use Area"
  may include mix of:
     1. Office
     2. Single-Family - Sewered
     3. Two-Family Residential
     4. Multi-Family Residential
     5. Commerical Services/Retail
     6. Institutional
     7. Parks & Recreation

1 2
3
456

7

City of Watertown
Town Boundary! !

Parcel
Railroad

! ! Watertown Urban Service Area
Watertown Long Range Growth Area

Maximum Building Elevation
b/t 865 and 968 ft

Airport Height Limitations

Maximum Building Elevation
b/t 968 and 1005 ft

24

Section 3, Item C.

BZirbes
Callout
1014 S. Second St



106 Jones Street • P.O. Box 477 • Watertown, WI 53094-0477 • Phone 920.262.4060 

Opportunity Runs Through It 
 
 

BUILDING, SAFETY & ZONING DEPARTMENT 

Main Office 

920-262-4060 

Main Office 

920-262-4060 

Nikki Zimmerman 

920-262-4045 

Doug Zwieg 

920-262-4062 

Brian Zirbes 

920-262-4041 

Dell Zwieg 

920-262-4042 

Dennis Quest 

920-262-4061 

 

92 

Mark Hady 

920-342-0986 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

TO:    Plan Commission 

DATE:  June 24th, 2024 

SUBJECT: 1819 River Drive Airplane Hanger Lease 

 

A request by David Hoefgen, agent for American Rentals LLC, for a review and a recommendation to 

Council for an airplane hangar lease and building plans at 1819 River Dr. Watertown, WI within the 

Watertown Municipal Airport property.  Parcel PIN: 291-0815-0931-001.   

 

SITE DETAILS: 

Acres: 120.19 

Current Zoning: PI Planned Industrial 

Existing Land Use: Airport 

Future Land Use Designation: Airport 

 

BACKGROUND & APPLICATION DESCRIPTION: 

The applicant is seeking approval of a lease for an airplane hangar located on city-owned property.  

 

STAFF EVALUATION: 

 
Site Plan Review Committee: 

See Minutes from June 10th, 2024 

 

Wisconsin Statutes  

Per the Wisconsin Statues it is the role of the Plan Commission to review and recommend to Council any 

leases pertaining to public facilities, including airports. 
 

Per Wisconsin State Statute § 62.23(5): 

  

(5) Matters referred to city plan commission. The council, or other public body or officer of the city having final 

authority thereon, shall refer to the city plan commission, for its consideration and report before final action is 

taken by the council, public body or officer, the following matters: The location and architectural design of any 

public building; the location of any statue or other memorial; the location, acceptance, extension, alteration, 

vacation, abandonment, change of use, sale, acquisition of land for or lease of land for any street, alley 

or other public way, park, playground, airport, area for parking vehicles, or other memorial or public 

grounds; the location, extension, abandonment or authorization for any public utility whether publicly or privately 

owned; all plats of lands in the city or within the territory over which the city is given platting jurisdiction by ch. 

236; the location, character and extent or acquisition, leasing or sale of lands for public or semipublic housing, 

slum clearance, relief of congestion, or vacation camps for children; and the amendment or repeal of any 

ordinance adopted pursuant to this section. Unless such report is made within 30 days, or such longer period as 

may be stipulated by the common council, the council or other public body or officer, may take final action 

without it.  

 

PLAN COMMISSION OPTIONS: 

The following are possible options for the Plan Commission: 

1. Deny the recommendation of the lease. 

2. Approve the recommendation of the lease. 

3. Postpone review and recommendation to a later date. 

25

Section 3, Item D.



106 Jones Street • P.O. Box 477 • Watertown, WI 53094-0477 • Phone 920.262.4060 

Opportunity Runs Through It 
 
 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

• Application materials 

26

Section 3, Item D.



27

Section 3, Item D.



28

Section 3, Item D.



29

Section 3, Item D.



30

Section 3, Item D.



31

Section 3, Item D.



32

Section 3, Item D.



33

Section 3, Item D.



34

Section 3, Item D.



35

Section 3, Item D.



36

Section 3, Item D.



37

Section 3, Item D.



38

Section 3, Item D.



39

Section 3, Item D.



40

Section 3, Item D.



41

Section 3, Item D.



42

Section 3, Item D.



43

Section 3, Item D.



44

Section 3, Item D.



1748

45

Section 3, Item D.

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1833

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1831

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1829

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1827

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1825

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1823

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1821

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1779

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1775

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1757

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1755

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1753

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1749

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1747

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1745

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1743

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1765

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1751

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1759

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1761

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1767

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1769

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1771

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1763

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1781

BZirbes
Callout
1819 River Dr



46

Section 3, Item D.



47

Section 3, Item D.



48

Section 3, Item D.



106 Jones Street • P.O. Box 477 • Watertown, WI 53094-0477 • Phone 920.262.4060 

Opportunity Runs Through It 
 
 

BUILDING, SAFETY & ZONING DEPARTMENT 

Main Office 

920-262-4060 

Main Office 

920-262-4060 

Nikki Zimmerman 

920-262-4045 

Doug Zwieg 

920-262-4062 

Brian Zirbes 

920-262-4041 

Dell Zwieg 

920-262-4042 

Dennis Quest 

920-262-4061 

 

92 

Mark Hady 

920-342-0986 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

TO:    Plan Commission 

DATE:  June 24th, 2024 

SUBJECT: 1832 River Drive Airplane Hanger Lease 

 

A request by Andrew and Emily Schmidt for a review and a recommendation to Council for an airplane 

hangar lease and building plans at 1832 River Dr. Watertown, WI within the Watertown Municipal Airport 

property.  Parcel PIN: 291-0815-0931-001.   

 

SITE DETAILS: 

Acres: 120.19 

Current Zoning: PI Planned Industrial 

Existing Land Use: Airport 

Future Land Use Designation: Airport 

 

BACKGROUND & APPLICATION DESCRIPTION: 

The applicant is seeking approval of a lease for an airplane hangar located on city-owned property.  

 

STAFF EVALUATION: 

 
Site Plan Review Committee: 

See Minutes from June 10th, 2024 

 

Wisconsin Statutes  

Per the Wisconsin Statues it is the role of the Plan Commission to review and recommend to Council any 

leases pertaining to public facilities, including airports. 
 

Per Wisconsin State Statute § 62.23(5): 

  

(5) Matters referred to city plan commission. The council, or other public body or officer of the city having final 

authority thereon, shall refer to the city plan commission, for its consideration and report before final action is 

taken by the council, public body or officer, the following matters: The location and architectural design of any 

public building; the location of any statue or other memorial; the location, acceptance, extension, alteration, 

vacation, abandonment, change of use, sale, acquisition of land for or lease of land for any street, alley 

or other public way, park, playground, airport, area for parking vehicles, or other memorial or public 

grounds; the location, extension, abandonment or authorization for any public utility whether publicly or privately 

owned; all plats of lands in the city or within the territory over which the city is given platting jurisdiction by ch. 

236; the location, character and extent or acquisition, leasing or sale of lands for public or semipublic housing, 

slum clearance, relief of congestion, or vacation camps for children; and the amendment or repeal of any 

ordinance adopted pursuant to this section. Unless such report is made within 30 days, or such longer period as 

may be stipulated by the common council, the council or other public body or officer, may take final action 

without it.  

 

PLAN COMMISSION OPTIONS: 

The following are possible options for the Plan Commission: 

1. Deny the recommendation of the lease. 

2. Approve the recommendation of the lease. 

3. Postpone review and recommendation to a later date. 

49

Section 3, Item E.



106 Jones Street • P.O. Box 477 • Watertown, WI 53094-0477 • Phone 920.262.4060 

Opportunity Runs Through It 
 
 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

• Application materials 

50

Section 3, Item E.



51

Section 3, Item E.



52

Section 3, Item E.



53

Section 3, Item E.



54

Section 3, Item E.



55

Section 3, Item E.



56

Section 3, Item E.



57

Section 3, Item E.



58

Section 3, Item E.



1748

59

Section 3, Item E.

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1833

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1831

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1829

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1827

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1825

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1823

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1821

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1779

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1775

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1757

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1755

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1753

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1749

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1747

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1745

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1743

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1765

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1751

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1759

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1761

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1767

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1769

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1771

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1763

BZirbes
Typewritten Text
1781

BZirbes
Callout
1832 River Dr



106 Jones Street • P.O. Box 477 • Watertown, WI 53094-0477 • Phone 920.262.4060 

Opportunity Runs Through It 
 
 

BUILDING, SAFETY & ZONING DIVISON 

Main Office 

920-262-4060 

Main Office 

920-262-4060 

Nikki Zimmerman 

920-262-4045 

Doug Zwieg 

920-262-4062 

Brian Zirbes 

920-262-4041 

Dell Zwieg 

920-262-4042 

Dennis Quest 

920-262-4061 

 

92 

Mark Hady 

920-342-0986 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 

TO:   Plan Commission 

DATE: June 24th, 2024 

SUBJECT: Hunter Oaks PUD Amendment - Initial Review and Set Public Hearing Date 

 

Initial Review and Setting of a Public Hearing Date for an amended Planned Unit Development (PUD) 

General Development Plan (GDP) requested by John Donovan, agent for Bielinski Homes Inc., Hunter Oaks 

Subdivision, West Street, Watertown, WI.  Parcel PIN(s): 291-0815-0642-006, 291-0815-0642-007 

 

SITE DETAILS: 

Acres: 6.16 & 6.21 Acres  

Current Zoning: Two-Family Residential (TR-6) with a PUD Overlay 

Existing Land Use: Undeveloped 

Future Land Use Designation(s): Multi-Family Residential 

 

BACKGROUND AND APPLICATION DESCRIPTION: 

The applicant is seeking an initial review and the setting of a public hearing date by the Plan Commission for 

an amended Planned Unit Development (PUD) General Development Plan (GDP).  The amended proposal 

looks to revise Area C(b) from the approved General Development Plan of June 20th, 2023.  The amended 

proposal consists of changing the use of this area to ‘Single Family Small Lots’ with reduced lots sizes and 

public ROW of widths.  A total of 53 lots are being proposed in three phases.   

 

STAFF EVALAUATION: 

 

Land Use and Zoning: 

 

The proposed PUD General Development Plan is requesting flexibilities to Zoning Standards as allowed 

under Section § 550-152B of the Zoning Code.  For the proposed ‘Single Family Small Lots’ (Area C(b)), the 

applicant seeks to reduce the Minimum Lot Area requirements for a Single-Family Home from 8,000 sq ft to 

4,601 sq ft per dwelling unit and to reduce the Street Yard Building Setbacks (front and corner) to 20ft. All 

public road ROW are requested to be 60 ft wide. The applicant is also requesting the vacation of a portion of 

Belmont Drive within Area C(b).   

 

The Stormwater Detention Pond in Area K will be reconstructed by the applicant in 2024 and the Area H-2 

(Phase 1) single-family lots and park dedication will be pushed back to 2026.  All other terms of the June 20 th, 

2023 GDP remain the same. 

.   
Flexibilities allowed by a Planned Unit Development under Section § 550-152B: 

B. Provision of flexible development standards for planned unit developments. 

(1) Permitted location. Planned unit developments shall be permitted with the approval of a Planned Unit Development Overlay Zoning 

District specific to the approved planned unit development. 

(2) Flexible development standards. The following exemptions to the development standards of the underlying zoning district may be 

provided with the approval of a planned unit development: 

(a) Land use requirements. All land uses listed as "residential," "institutional" or “commercial" may be permitted within a p lanned 

unit development. 

(b) Density and intensity requirements. All requirements listed for residential density and nonresidential intensity may be waived 

within a planned unit development. 

60

Section 3, Item F.



106 Jones Street • P.O. Box 477 • Watertown, WI 53094-0477 • Phone 920.262.4060 

Opportunity Runs Through It 
 
 

(c) Bulk requirements. All residential and nonresidential bulk requirements may be waived within a planned unit development. 

(d) Landscaping requirements. All landscaping requirements may be waived within a planned unit development. 

(e) Parking and loading requirements. All requirements for off-street parking, traffic circulation, and off-street loading may be 

waived within a planned unit development. 

(f) Drainageway Overlay District requirements. All Drainageway Overlay District requirements may be waived within a planned unit 

development. 

(3) Requirements to depict all aspects of development. Only development which is explicitly depicted on the required site plan approved 

by the Common Council as part of the approved planned unit development shall be permitted, even if such development (including all 

aspects of land use, density and intensity, bulk landscaping, and parking and loading) is otherwise listed as permitted. Requested 

exemptions from these standards shall be made explicit by the applicant in the application and shall be recommended by the Plan 

Commission and approved explicitly by the Common Council. If not so requested and approved, such exemptions shall not be 

permitted. Flexible development standards shall be limited to density and intensity bonuses of no greater than 25% higher than 

otherwise permitted by the MR-10 District, unless specifically granted by the Common Council, and shall be limited to reductions in 

bulk, landscaping, parking and loading requirements of no greater than 25% lower than otherwise permitted for the proposed land 

uses, unless specifically granted by the Common Council.  

 

Per Sections § 550-152G(2), the GDP step shall be identical to that for Zoning Map amendments: 

 

(2) The process and fees for review and approval of the GDP shall be identical to that for Zoning Map amendments per this chapter 

and (if land is to be divided) to that for preliminary and final plats of subdivision per the City Code. 

 

PLAN COMMISSION OPTIONS: 

 

The following are possible options for the Plan Commission: 

 

1. Set public hearing date to July 16, 2024. 

2. Postpone public hearing to a later date. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 

• Application materials. 

 

61

Section 3, Item F.



62

Section 3, Item F.



63

Section 3, Item F.



1
2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16
29

30

31

32

333435
36

37

38 28 17

1827

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

5051
52

53

54

55

56
57

44
43

42

41

40

39

45

46

47

48

4958

59
6061

25

1 2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15
16

17 18 19 20

212223
24

26

27

28

29

1234567
8

9

10

11

12

13

14
15

16 17 18 19 20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28
29

30

31

32

3334

35

36

37
38 39 40 41 42 43

44454647

48

49

50
51

52 53

4100 North Calhoun Road
Brookfield, WI 53005
PHONE:  (262) 790-1480
FAX:  (262) 790-1481
EMAIL: info@trioeng.com

GENERAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN

"Hunter Oaks Neighborhood"
City of Watertown, Wisconsin

WEST STREET (CTH "T")

H
U

N
TE

R

STEEPLECHASE DR

E 
H

O
R

SE
SH

O
E 

R
D

O
AK

S 
BL

VD

DA C(a)

BELMONT DR

HAZELCREST DR

AR
LI

N
G

TO
N

 W
AY

BR
ID

LE
W

O
O

D
 L

N
.

C
H

AD
W

IC
K 

D
R

.

OAKLAND AVE.

CHURCHILL LN.

HOLLI LN.

Acreage Calculations & Unit Counts

Area Land Use Net
Acreage

Number of
Units

Net
Density

% of Unit
Count

A Neighborhood Retail 3.3
B Neighborhood Retail 2.8

  C(a) Multi-Family Homes 3.8 54 14.2                9.0%
  C(b) Multi-Family Homes 6.2 81         13.1              16.7%

D Branch Fire Station
E Single-Family Attached Condos (2-Unit) 3.3 12 3.8                2.0%
F Single-Family Attached Condos (4 to 6 Unit)                5               50 10                9.0%
G Single-Family Attached Condos (4 to 8 Unit)             6.4               60 9.4              11.0%
H Single-Family Attached Condos (2-Unit)             3.7               20 5.4                4.0%
I Single-Family Lots (75'w to 110'w)             3.8             294 3.9 51.0%
J Neighborhood Park             8.2 - -
K Neighborhood Park 4.3 - -
L Storm Water Detention             8.9 - -

Street Right of Way           38.9

Total Project Area         169.7              571

Site Data Table (Original)

Scale: 1" = 150'
Scale: 1" = 300'

DATE: 5-17-2024

AREA
I

AREA
G

AREA C(b) (PH. 1)

AREA
F

AREA
J

AREA
E

AREA
B

AREA
BAREA

A-D

AREA
K

AREA
H-2

(PH. 3)

AREA
H-1

AREA
H-2

(PH. 2)

Overall Gross Density:
· 453 Total Units / 163.4 Total Project Acres = 2.77 DUA
Overall Net Density:
· 453 Total Units / 122.8 = 3.69 DUA

*Net Residential & Neighborhood Park Land Use Acres

*Net Residential & Neighborhood Park Land Use Acres is
 Equal to Areas A-D, B, C(b), E, F, G, H, I, J

Acreage Calculations & Unit Counts

Area Land Use Net
Acreage

Number of
Units

Net
Density

% of Unit
Count

A-D Multi-Family Condos (2-Unit) 6.5 34         5.23 3.98%
B Single-Family Attached Condos (2-Unit) 3.5 20 5.71 0.14%

  C(b) (PH1) Single-Family Lots 1.0 8 8.0 0.61%
  C(b) (PH2) Single-Family Lots 5.1 10 2.0 3.12%
  C(b) (PH3) Single-Family Lots 5.2 35 6.7 3.18%

E Single-Family Attached Condos (2-unit) 3.3 12         3.64 2.02%
F Single-Family Attached Condos (4 to 6 Unit) 5.1 50 9.80 3.12%
G Single-Family Attached Condos (2-Unit)             3.8               20 5.26 2.33%

H-1 Single-Family Lots 48.1 174 3.60 29.44%
H-2 (PH1) Single-Family Lots           8.1 25 3.09 4.96%
H-2 (PH2) Single-Family Lots 5.3 18 3.40 3.24%
H-2 (PH3) Single-Family Lots 7.8 20 2.56 4.77%
H-2 (PH4) Single-Family Lots           8.1 27 3.33 4.96%

I Neighborhood Park             7.5 - - 4.59%
J Neighborhood Park 4.4 - - 0.69%
K Storm Water Detention             8.9 - - 5.45%

Street Right of Way 31.7 19.40%

Total Project Area 163.4 453

Site Data Table (Amended)

AREA
H-2

(PH. 1)
AREA
H-2

(PH. 4)

AREA
C(b)

(PH. 3)

AREA
C(b)

(PH. 2)

(AMENDMENT)

64

Section 3, Item F.



Scale: 1" = 50'
Scale: 1" = 100'

DATE: 05-17-2024

      DATA SUMMARY
Proposed Site  AREA Cb
  Parcel Area: 13.13 acres
  Development: 53 lots 
  Density: 4.04 lots/acre
  Average Lot Size: 6,817s.f. (0.156Ac)

Proposed Phasing:
Phase 1: 8 lots, #1-8 (July 2024)
Phase 2: 10 lots, #44-53 (Nov. 2024)
Phase 3: 35 lots, #9-38 (2025)

Proposed Pad Dimensions:
28'x54' - Lots 1-6, 8, 13-32, 35-53
28'x50' - Lots 7, 9-12
30'x38' - Lots 33-34

Proposed Building Setbacks:
Street (Front): 20'
Street (Corner): 20'
Rear: 25'
Side: 8'
Min. Lot Width: 50'

SITE PLAN - AREA Cb
"HUNTER OAKS SINGLE FAMILY

HOME SITES"
City of Watertown, WI

4100 N. CALHOUN RD
SUITE 300

BROOKFIELD, WI 53005
t: (262) 790-1480

e: info@trioeng.com
www.trioeng.com

PHASE 2

PHASE 3

PHASE 1

PHASE 3

65

Section 3, Item F.



4-
UN

IT

PO
RC

H
PO

RC
H

PO
RC

H
PO

RC
H

PA
TI
O

PA
TI
O

PA
TI
O

PA
TI
O

GA
RA

GE
S

GA
RA

GE
S

243
242

241

240

239

238

237

236

221

220

219

218

217

216

215

214
213

212

211

210

209208207
206

205

204 224 223

222225

235

234

233

232

231

228

227

226

267

268

269

270
271

288
289

290

291

292

293

287

286

285

284

283282

281
280279

261

278 277

276

275

274

273

272

256

255

253

252

251

250

249
248

247 246 245 244

230264263
262

258

257

203

229265
266254

260

259

4100 North Calhoun Road
Brookfield, WI 53005
PHONE:  (262) 790-1480
FAX:  (262) 790-1481
EMAIL: info@trioeng.com

GENERAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN
"Hunter Oaks Neighborhood"

City of Watertown, Wisconsin

WEST STREET (CTH "T")

H
U

N
TE

R

STEEPLECHASE DR

E 
H

O
R

SE
SH

O
E 

R
D

O
AK

S 
BL

VD

DA C(a)

BELMONT DR

HAZELCREST DR

AR
LI

N
G

TO
N

 W
AY

BR
ID

LE
W

O
O

D
 L

N
.

C
H

AD
W

IC
K 

D
R

.

OAKLAND AVE.

CHURCHILL LN.

HOLLI LN.

Acreage Calculations & Unit Counts

Area Land Use Net
Acreage

Number of
Units

Net
Density

% of Unit
Count

A Neighborhood Retail 3.3
B Neighborhood Retail 2.8

  C(a) Multi-Family Homes 3.8 54 14.2                9.0%
  C(b) Multi-Family Homes 6.2 81         13.1              16.7%

D Branch Fire Station
E Single-Family Attached Condos (2-Unit) 3.2 12 3.8                2.0%
F Single-Family Attached Condos (4 to 6 Unit)                5               50 10                9.0%
G Single-Family Attached Condos (4 to 8 Unit)             6.4               60 9.4              11.0%
H Single-Family Attached Condos (2-Unit)             3.7               20 5.4                4.0%
I Single-Family Lots (75'w to 110'w)             3.8             294 3.9 51.0%
J Neighborhood Park             8.2 - -
K Neighborhood Park 4.3 - -
L Storm Water Detention             8.9 - -

Street Right of Way           38.9

Total Project Area         169.7              571

Site Data Table (Original)

Scale: 1" = 150'
Scale: 1" = 300'

DATE: 04-14-2023

AREA
I

AREA
G

AREA
C(b)

AREA
F

AREA
J

AREA
E

AREA
B

AREA
BAREA

A-D

AREA
K

AREA
H-1

Overall Gross Density:
· 497 Total Units / 173.2 Total Project Acres = 2.87 DUA
Overall Net Density:
· 497 Total Units / 140.7 = 3.53 DUA

*Net Residential & Neighborhood Park Land Use Acres

*Net Residential & Neighborhood Park Land Use Acres is
 Equal to Areas A-D, B, C(b), E, F, G, H-1, H-2(P1-4), I, J

Acreage Calculations & Unit Counts

Area Land Use Net
Acreage

Number of
Units

Net
Density

% of Unit
Count

A-D Multi-Family Condos (2-Unit) 6.5 34         5.23 6.8%
B Single-Family Attached Condos (2-Unit) 3.5 20 5.71 4.0%

  C(b) Multi-Family Homes 13.1 68 5.2 13.7%
E Single-Family Attached Condos (2-unit) 3.3 12         3.64 2.4%
F Single-Family Attached Condos (4 to 6 Unit) 5.1 50 9.80 10.1%
G Single-Family Attached Condos (2-Unit)             3.8               20 5.26 4.0%

H-1 Single-Family Lots 55.3 202 3.60 40.8%
H-2 (P1) Single-Family Lots 8.5            26 3.06 5.2%
H-2 (P2) Single-Family Lots 5.3 18 3.39 3.6%
H-2 (P3) Single-Family Lots 7.8 20 2.56 4.0%
H-2 (P4) Single-Family Lots 8.1 27 3.33 5.4%

I Neighborhood Park             7.1 - -
J Neighborhood Park 4.4 - -
K Storm Water Detention             8.9 - -

Street Right of Way 32.5

Total Project Area 173.2 497

Site Data Table (Revised)

AREA
H-2

(PH. 1)

AREA
H-2

(PH. 2)

AREA
H-2

(PH. 3)

AREA
H-2

(PH. 4)

C
R

ES
TV

IE
W

 D
R

.

AU
TU

M
N

 C
R

ES
T 

D
R

.

SOMMERFIELD DR.

RIDGE WAY

WILD ROSE WAY

FI
EL

D
ST

O
N

E 
W

AY

66

Section 3, Item F.



Scale: 1" = 30'
Scale: 1" = 60'

1

E.
 H

OR
SE

SH
OE

 R
D

  DATA SUMMARY
Proposed Site
  Parcel Area: 6.5 acres
  Development: 17 Buildings = 34 units
  Density: 5.23 units/acre
Proposed Building: Condo

Sabrina 1302

Proposed Zoning: Multi-Family Residential
Proposed Building Setbacks:

Street (Front): 25'
Rear: 25'

  Between Bldgs: 20'

4100 North Calhoun Road
Brookfield, WI 53005
PHONE:  (262) 790-1480
FAX:  (262) 790-1481
EMAIL: info@trioeng.com

AREA A & D SITE PLAN
"Hunter Oaks Villas Phase III"

City of Watertown, Wisconsin
WEST STREET (CTH T)

2

3

4567
8

9

10

11 12 13 14

151617

DATE: 04-14-2023
67

Section 3, Item F.



WEST STREET                                          (CTH "T")

Scale: 1" = 30'
Scale: 1" = 60'

  DATA SUMMARY
Proposed Site
  Parcel Area: 3.5 acres
  Development: 10 Buildings = 20 units
  Density: 5.71 units/acre
Proposed Building:
Phase 1: Condo (Existing)
Phase 2: Condo

Adalyn 1300

Proposed Zoning: Multi-Family Residential
Proposed Building Setbacks:

4100 North Calhoun Road
Brookfield, WI 53005
PHONE:  (262) 790-1480
FAX:  (262) 790-1481
EMAIL: info@trioeng.com

DATE: 04-14-2023

STEEPLECHASE                                 DRIVE
H

U
N

TE
R

 O
AK

S 
BL

VD

AREA B SITE PLAN
"Hunter Oaks Villas Phase II"

City of Watertown, Wisconsin

1
2

3

4 5 6

PHASE II
PHASE I

(EXISTING)

1

2

3
4

68

Section 3, Item F.



247 246 245
244

Scale: 1" = 50'
Scale: 1" = 100'

H
U

N
TE

R
 O

AK
S 

BL
VD

STEEPLECHASE DR

4100 North Calhoun Road
Brookfield, WI 53005
PHONE:  (262) 790-1480
FAX:  (262) 790-1481
EMAIL: info@trioeng.com

AREA C(b) SITE PLAN
"Hunter Oaks Cottages"

City of Watertown, Wisconsin

DATE: 04-14-2023

BELMONT DR

OAKLA
ND A

VE.

  DATA SUMMARY
Proposed Site
  Parcel Area: 13.13 acres
  Development: 68 Units
  Density: 5.18 units/acre

Proposed Building: Condo
Sabrina 1302

Proposed Zoning: Multi-Family Residential
Proposed Building Setbacks:

Street (Front): 25'
Rear: 25'

  Between Bldgs: 20'

SITE PLAN 3

69

Section 3, Item F.



243
242

241

240

239

238

237

236

221

220

219

218

217

216

215

214
213

212

211

210

209208207
206

205

204 224 223

222225

235

234

233

232

231

228

227

226

267

268

269

270
271

288
289

290

291

292

293

287

286

285

284

283282

281
280279

261

278 277

276

275

274

273

272

256

255

253

252

251

250

249
248

247 246 245
244

230264263
262

258

257

203

229265
266254

260

259

Scale: 1" = 100'
Scale: 1" = 200'

4100 North Calhoun Road
Brookfield, WI 53005
PHONE:  (262) 790-1480
FAX:  (262) 790-1481
EMAIL: info@trioeng.com

AREA H & I SITE PLAN
"Hunter Oaks"
Neighborhood

City of Watertown, Wisconsin

DATE: 04-14-2023

AREA
G

H
U

N
TE

R

E 
H

O
R

SE
SH

O
E 

R
D

O
AK

S 
BL

VD

BELMONT DR

HAZELCREST DR

OAKLAND AVE.

CHURCHILL LN.

HOLLI LN.

BELM
O

N
T D

R

    DATA SUMMARY
Proposed Site

Area H-2:
Phase 1 26 Single Family Lots

Area = 8.5 Acres
Phase 2 18 Single Family Lots

Area = 5.3 Acres
Phase 3 20 Single Family Lots

Area = 7.8 Acres
Phase 4 27 Single Family Lots

Area = 8.1 Acres

Total Lots: 91 Single Family Lots
Total Area: 29.7 Acres
Density: 3.06 units/acre

 Area I: Neighborhood Park
Net Area = 7.1 acres

Proposed Single Family Lot Requirements:
Min. Lot Area:  8,000 s.f.
Min. Lot Width:  75'
Setbacks:   Street (Front): 25'

  Rear: 25'
  Side:  8'

Total Street Length:  5,580.0 ft.

AREA
I

AREA
H-2

(PH. 1)

AREA
H-2

(PH. 2)

AREA
H-2

(PH. 3)

AREA
H-2

(PH. 4)

70

Section 3, Item F.



71

Section 3, Item F.



72

Section 3, Item F.



73

Section 3, Item F.



74

Section 3, Item F.



75

Section 3, Item F.



76

Section 3, Item F.



77

Section 3, Item F.



78

Section 3, Item F.



79

Section 3, Item F.



80

Section 3, Item F.



81

Section 3, Item F.



82

Section 3, Item F.



83

Section 3, Item F.



84

Section 3, Item F.



85

Section 3, Item F.



86

Section 3, Item F.



87

Section 3, Item F.



88

Section 3, Item F.



!
!

!

!

!

!

! ! !

!

! !

!
!

!
!

!

!!

! !

!

!

!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!
! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! !
! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! ! !

!
!

!

!

!
!

! ! !

!
!

!
!

!

!!

!
!

!
!

!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

! !
!

!

!

!!!

!

!
!

!
! !

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

! ! !
!

! ! !

! !

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

! !

!
!

!!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!
!

!!!

!
!

!
!

!

!!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!

!

! !

!
!

! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

! !
!

!
!

!

! ! !

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!!!!!!!

!
!

!

!
!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!!!

!
!

!

!

!!
!

!!

!
!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

! !

!

! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! !

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!!!! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!!!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!!
!

!
!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
! !

!

! !
!

!

!

!

! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
! !

!

!

!

!

! ! !

!
!

!

!!!
!
!!

!!!
!
! !

!! !

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!
!

!
!!

!!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!!

!
!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!! !!! !!! !!!

!
!!

!! !
! !
!

!!!
!!
!

!!!
! !
!

!! !!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!!!!!!!!
!!
!

!
!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!

!
!
!!

!

!

!!
!!
!

!
!!

!!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!!

!!!
!!
!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!!

!!
!

!!!

!!!
!!
!

!!!

!
!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!!!

!!
!

!!
!

!!!
!!
!

!
!!

!
!!

!!!
!!
!

!
!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!!

!!
!

!!
!

! !
!

!!!
!!!

!
!!

!!
!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!!!!
!

!!!!!!!!
!

!!!
!!
!

!!! !
! !

!! !
!
! !

! !!
!
!!

!!!

!!!!!!!

!!
!
!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!
!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!
!

!!! !!! !!! !!!

!!!! !!!!

!!!

!

!!!

!!
!

!!!
!! !!!

!
!
!!

!!!!

!!

!!
! !!! !!! !!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!!

Town of Emmet
Town of Shields

Town of Watertown

Town of Watertown

Jefferson
County

Dodge
County

Silver Creek

Rock River

Ro
ck

Ri
ver

Ro
ck

River

W
elsh Rd

High Rd

Provimi Rd

Ha
nc

oc
k R

d

S 1
2t

h S
t

Gopher Hill Rd

Church St

Beryl Dr

Clark St

S 3
rd

 St

Rive
r D

r

Western AveGypsy Rd

So
ut

h R
d

S W
ate

r S
t

W Main St

West St

Summit Ave

N 4th St

Milfo
rd St

Air Park Dr

2n
dS

tre
et

RdN W
ater St

Hall St

Turf
Dr

Juneau St

Hilltop Rd

Ai
rp

or
t R

d

Horseshoe Rd

JeffersonRd

River Rd

")E

")CW

UV16

")D

")M

")Q

")K

")T

")A

")R

UV26

")E

")X

UV19

")Y

2

7

1

20 23

29

22

26

11

27

35

18

19

1415

30

21

6

28

13

12

20

36

25

19

24

22 2321

151617
14

18

24

31

13

24

13

8

10

5

Shapes on map represent general recommendations for future land use. 
Actual boundaries between different land use types and associated zoning 
districts may vary somewhat from representations on this map. Not all 
lands shown in a future developed land use category are immediately 
appropriate for development, rezoning, or subdivision. 
Environmental Corridors depicted on this map use generalized boundaries
of  environmental features identified by the DNR. Actual Environmental 
Corridor boundaries are to be refined through detailed on-site investigation.

Future Land Use
Urban Area

Map
6b

City of Watertown Comprehensive Plan
Land Use Categories

Shaping places, shaping change

VANDEWALLE &ASSOCIATES INC.

*Each "Planned Mixed Use Area"
  may include mix of:
     1. Office
     2. Multi-Family Residential
     3. Mixed Industrial
     4. Commerical Services/Retail
     5. Institutional
     6. Parks & Recreation

Planned Neighborhood** Draft: August 7, 2019
Source:  WisDNR, FEMA,

              City of Watertown,
              Dodge Co. LIO &

              Jefferson Co. LIO, V&A
Institutional

**"Planned Neighborhoods" should include a mix
   of the following:
     1. Single-Family - Sewered (predominant land use)
     2. Two-family Residential
     3. Multi-Family Residential
     4. Institutional
     5. Neighborhood Mixed Use
     6. Parks & Recreation

Agricultural

Multi-Family Residential

Planned Mixed Use*

Rights-of-Way
Neighborhood Mixed Use

Single-Family Residential - Unsewered
Single-Family Residential - Sewered
Two-Family Residential

Airport .0 0.5 10.25
Miles

!!
!

!!! !!

!

!!!!!! City Growth Area

!!
!

!!! !!

!

!!!!!! City Periphery Areas

City/Town IGA**

City of Watertown
Growth Area*

City of Watertown
And Town of Emmet
Intergovernmental 

Agreement**

1
2

345
6

1 2
345

6

Parks & Recreation
Environmental Corridor
Surface Water

Mixed Industrial

Central Mixed Use
Riverside Mixed Use***

***Each "Riverside Mixed Use Area"
  may include mix of:
     1. Office
     2. Single-Family - Sewered
     3. Two-Family Residential
     4. Multi-Family Residential
     5. Commerical Services/Retail
     6. Institutional
     7. Parks & Recreation

1 2
3
456

7

City of Watertown
Town Boundary! !

Parcel
Railroad

! ! Watertown Urban Service Area
Watertown Long Range Growth Area

Maximum Building Elevation
b/t 865 and 968 ft

Airport Height Limitations

Maximum Building Elevation
b/t 968 and 1005 ft

89

Section 3, Item F.

BZirbes
Callout
Proposed Amended PUD GDP Area C(b) 



106 Jones Street • P.O. Box 477 • Watertown, WI 53094-0477 • Phone 920.262.4060 

Opportunity Runs Through It 
 
 

BUILDING, SAFETY & ZONING DEPARTMENT 

Main Office 

920-262-4060 

Main Office 

920-262-4060 

Nikki Zimmerman 

920-262-4045 

Doug Zwieg 

920-262-4062 

Brian Zirbes 

920-262-4041 

Dell Zwieg 

920-262-4042 

Dennis Quest 

920-262-4061 

 

92 

Mark Hady 

920-342-0986 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

TO:    Plan Commission 

DATE:  June 24th, 2024 

SUBJECT: Jones St – Vacation/Discontinuance of a Public Way 

 
A request by the City of Watertown to initiate the vacation/discontinuance of a portion of Jones Street.  

 

SITE DETAILS: 

Street: Jones St 

Acres: 0.1 

 

BACKGROUND & APPLICATION DESCRIPTION: 

The City of Watertown is proposing to vacate/discontinue a public way for a portion of Jones Street 

located west of the intersection with North First Street and extending west to the Rock River to foster 

redevelopment of the adjacent parcel in the public interest. 

 

STAFF EVALUATION: 

 

Wisconsin Statutes  

Per the Wisconsin Statues it is the role of the Plan Commission to review and recommend to Council any 

Vacation/Discontinuance of a Public Way. 
 

Per Wisconsin State Statute § 62.23(5): 

 

(5) Matters referred to city plan commission. The council, or other public body or officer of the city having final 

authority thereon, shall refer to the city plan commission, for its consideration and report before final action is 

taken by the council, public body or officer, the following matters: The location and architectural design of any 

public building; the location of any statue or other memorial; the location, acceptance, extension, alteration, 

vacation, abandonment, change of use, sale, acquisition of land for or lease of land for any street, alley or 

other public way, park, playground, airport, area for parking vehicles, or other memorial or public grounds; the 

location, extension, abandonment or authorization for any public utility whether publicly or privately owned; all 

plats of lands in the city or within the territory over which the city is given platting jurisdiction by ch. 236; the 

location, character and extent or acquisition, leasing or sale of lands for public or semipublic housing, slum 

clearance, relief of congestion, or vacation camps for children; and the amendment or repeal of any ordinance 

adopted pursuant to this section. Unless such report is made within 30 days, or such longer period as may be 

stipulated by the common council, the council or other public body or officer, may take final action without it.  

 

Per the Wisconsin Statues the Common Council may initiate any Vacation/Discontinuance of a Public 

Way that is determined to be in the public interest. 
 

Per Wisconsin State Statute § 66.1003(4)(a)): 

 

(a) Notwithstanding subs. (2) and (3), proceedings covered by this section may be initiated by the common council 

or village or town board by the introduction of a resolution declaring that since the public interest requires 

it, a public way or an unpaved alley is vacated and discontinued. No discontinuance of a public way under 

this subsection may result in a landlocked parcel of property. 

 

90

Section 3, Item G.



106 Jones Street • P.O. Box 477 • Watertown, WI 53094-0477 • Phone 920.262.4060 

Opportunity Runs Through It 
 
 

 

 

PLAN COMMISSION OPTIONS: 

 

The following possible options for the Plan Commission: 

1. Negative recommendation of the Discontinuance of a Public Way to Common Council. 

2. Positive recommendation of the Discontinuance of a Public Way to Common Council. 

3. Positive recommendation of the Discontinuance of a Public Way to Common Council, with conditions identified 

by the Plan Commission: 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 

• Application materials. 

 

 

 

91

Section 3, Item G.



(Type meeting date) Exhibit #XXXX  

 
 

INITIAL RESOLUTION 
TO DISCONTINUE PUBLIC WAY ON JONES STREET, NEAR AND ABOUT ITS 

INTERSECTION WITH NORTH FIRST STREET,  
CITY OF WATERTOWN, COUNTY OF JEFFERSON, WISCONSIN 

 
Sponsor:  Mayor Emily McFarland 

From:   Plan Commission 
 
 

WHEREAS, it is proposed that the public interest requires that a portion of Jones Street, that has 
not previously been vacated, be vacated and discontinued; and, 
 
WHEREAS, it is the purpose of this Resolution to state the intent of the City Council to vacate 
and discontinue that portion of Jones Street generally described above and particularly described 
below. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Common Council of the City of Watertown, 
Wisconsin: 
 
Section 1. That the Common Council of the City of Watertown, Wisconsin, hereby proposes 
to determine whether the public interest requires that a portion of Jones Street, City of Watertown, 
Dodge County, Wisconsin, as hereinafter described, is to be vacated and discontinued pursuant 
to §66.1003 of the Wisconsin Statutes. 
 
 LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 
 That part of Jones Street west of the intersection with North First Street and extending to 
the Rock River. 
 
 EASEMENTS 
 The City of Watertown will retain an easement for ALL existing utilities within the entire 
width of the above-described and vacated street area and a new easement for the River Walk. 
 
 EXISTING LOT LINE PROJECTIONS 
 It is the intent of the City of Watertown that the adjoining property owner to the south of 
this vacated street area shall acquire an ownership interest in the entire area being vacated. 
 
  
Section 2. That the City Clerk of the City of Watertown be authorized and directed to give 
notice required by §66.1003 of the Wisconsin Statutes; and, 
 
Section 3. That according to §80.32 of the Wisconsin Statutes, upon vacation and 

discontinuance of said portion of Jones Street, title to the above-described land shall belong to 

the adjoining property owner to the south of this vacated street area and shall acquire an 

ownership interest in the entire area being vacated as shown on the attached Exhibit “A”; and, 

Section 4. That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage 
and adoption. 
  

92

Section 3, Item G.



(Type meeting date) Exhibit #XXXX  

 
 

 
 

  YES  NO                 

DAVIS   ADOPTED ____Type meeting date___________ 

LAMPE    

BOARD   _______________________________________________ 

BARTZ   CITY CLERK 

BLANKE    

SMITH   APPROVED ___Type meeting date___________ 

SCHMID    

WETZEL   ________________________________________________ 

MOLDENHAUER   MAYOR 

MAYOR MCFARLAND    

  TOTAL    

 

93

Section 3, Item G.



EXHIBIT A

Printed on: May 21, 2024

DISCLA IMER: This map is not a  substitute for an actual  field  survey or  onsite  investigation.
The accuracy of th is map is limi ted to the quali ty  o f the records from which it was assembled.
Other inherent inacc uracies occur during the compi lation process.
City of Watertown makes no warranty whatsoever concerning this information.

City of Watertown Geographic Information System

Author: Private User

Areas

ROW to be Discontinued
±

Scale: 1 inch = 70 feet
SCALE BAR = 1"

94

Section 3, Item G.

BZirbes
Callout
Portion of Jones Street to be Discontinued



106 Jones Street • P.O. Box 477 • Watertown, WI 53094-0477 • Phone 920.262.4060 

Opportunity Runs Through It 
 
 

BUILDING, SAFETY & ZONING DEPARTMENT 

Main Office 

920-262-4060 

Main Office 

920-262-4060 

Nikki Zimmerman 

920-262-4045 

Doug Zwieg 

920-262-4062 

Brian Zirbes 

920-262-4041 

Dell Zwieg 

920-262-4042 

Dennis Quest 

920-262-4061 

 

92 

Mark Hady 

920-342-0986 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

TO:    Plan Commission 

DATE:  June 24th, 2024 

SUBJECT: County Road A - Annexation 

 
A request by Gremar LLC, agent for RJAB LLC, to annex land into the City of Watertown.  Parcel PIN(s): 

032-0815-0741-002  

 

SITE DETAILS: 

Acres: 20.0 

Current Jurisdiction:  Town of Watertown 

Existing Land Use: Agriculture – Single-Family 

Future Land Use Designation: Planned Neighborhood 

 

BACKGROUND & APPLICATION DESCRIPTION: 

The applicant is proposing to annex approximately 20 acres from the Town of Watertown into the City of 

Watertown for a conceptual 48 lot residential subdivision.  The annexation area includes one existing 

home with outbuildings owned by the applicant.   

 

STAFF EVALUATION: 

 

Chapter 550 Zoning 

The Plan Commission, together with its other statutory duties, shall make reports and recommendations 

relating to the planning and development of the City to the Common Council.  [Per §550-155A] 

 

Wisconsin Statutes  

Per the Wisconsin Statues a petition for direct annexation may be filed with the City Clerk for 

consideration by the Common Council. 
 

Per Wisconsin State Statute § 66.0217(2) 

 

(2) DIRECT ANNEXATION BY UNANIMOUS APPROVAL. Except as provided in this subsection and sub. (14), and 

subject to ss. 66.0301 (6) (d) and 66.0307 (7), if a petition for direct annexation signed by all of the electors 

residing in the territory and the owners of all of the real property in the territory is filed with the city or 

village clerk, and with the town clerk of the town or towns in which the territory is located, together with a scale 

map and a legal description of the property to be annexed, an annexation ordinance for the annexation of the 

territory may be enacted by a two−thirds vote of the elected members of the governing body of the city or 

village without compliance with the notice requirements of sub. (4). In an annexation under this subsection, 

subject to sub. (6), the person filing the petition with the city or village clerk and the town clerk shall, within 5 days 

of the filing, mail a copy of the scale map and a legal description of the territory to be annexed to the department 

and the governing body shall review the advice of the department, if any, before enacting the annexation 

ordinance. No territory may be annexed by a city or village under this subsection unless the territory to be 

annexed is contiguous to the annexing city or village.  

 

95

Section 3, Item H.



106 Jones Street • P.O. Box 477 • Watertown, WI 53094-0477 • Phone 920.262.4060 

Opportunity Runs Through It 
 
 

PLAN COMMISSION OPTIONS: 

 

The following possible options for the Plan Commission: 

1. Negative recommendation of the Annexation to Common Council. 

2. Positive recommendation of the Annexation to Common Council and schedule a Public hearing for 

August 6th, 2024. 

3. Positive recommendation of the Annexation to Common Council, with conditions identified by the Plan 

Commission: 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 

• Application materials. 

96

Section 3, Item H.



97

Section 3, Item H.



98

Section 3, Item H.



99

Section 3, Item H.



100

Section 3, Item H.



101

Section 3, Item H.



102

Section 3, Item H.



103

Section 3, Item H.



104

Section 3, Item H.



105

Section 3, Item H.



106

Section 3, Item H.



107

Section 3, Item H.



108

Section 3, Item H.



109

Section 3, Item H.



110

Section 3, Item H.



Gremar LLC Proposed Annexation

Printed on: May 30, 2024

DISCLA IMER: This map is not a  substitute for an actual  field  survey or  onsite  investigation.
The accuracy of th is map is limi ted to the quali ty  o f the records from which it was assembled.
Other inherent inacc uracies occur during the compi lation process.
City of Watertown makes no warranty whatsoever concerning this information.

City of Watertown Geographic Information System

Author: Private User

Parcels

Override 1

Parcels

City Limits ±
Scale: 1 inch = 400 feet

SCALE BAR = 1"
111

Section 3, Item H.



( , 2024) Ord. #  

, 2023) Ord. # 
 

ANNEXATION ORDINANCE 
 

SPONSOR: MAYOR MCFARLAND, CHAIR 
FROM: PLAN COMMISSION WITH POSITIVE RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

WHEREAS, Gremar, LLC (applicant) and RJAB, LLC (owner) have filed with the Common Council, 

a Petition for Direct Annexation of Real Estate by Unanimous Approval with the City of Watertown, 

Jefferson and Dodge Counties, Wisconsin; and  

WHEREAS, a copy of said Petition has been reviewed by the City of Watertown Plan Commission 

and the state of Wisconsin Department of Administration, and has been provided to the Town Clerk of the 

Town of Watertown, Jefferson County, Wisconsin, in compliance with Section 66.0217(2) of the Wisconsin 

Statutes; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Watertown Plan Commission and the State of Wisconsin Department of 

Administration have indicated their support for the annexation. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WATERTOWN DO ORDAIN 

AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1: That the following described real estate be, and the same is, hereby annexed to the 

corporate city limits of the City of Watertown from the Town of Watertown, Jefferson County, 

Wisconsin, to-wit: 

Part of the Northeast ¼ of the Southeast ¼ of Section 8, Township 8 North, Range 15 East, in the 
Town of Watertown, Jefferson County, Wisconsin, more particularly described as follows: 

 
Commencing at the East ¼ corner of Section 8; thence South 00°07’35” East, along the East line 
of said Southeast ¼ a distance of 653.78 feet to the Point of Begging; thence continuing South 
00°07’35” East along said East line a distance of 653.78 feet; thence South 88°15’14” West, along 
the South line of the Northeast ¼ of the Southeast ¼ a distance of 1322.48 feet; thence North 
00°12’00” West, along the West line of the Northeast ¼ of the Southeast ¼ a distance of 653.91 
feet to the Southwest corner of Lot 27 of Hepp Heights Phase 2; thence North 88°15’37” East, 
along the South line of said Hepp Heights Phase 2 and Hepp Heights, a distance of 1323.31 feet 
to the Point of Beginning. 
 
Said lands contain 864,636 square feet, 19.85 acres, more or less. 
 
IT IS FURTHER ORDAINED AS FOLLOWS: 

That the above-described real estate shall be made a part of the 5th Aldermanic District, 9th Ward 

112

Section 3, Item H.



( , 2024) Ord. #  

, 2023) Ord. # 
 

of the City of Watertown, Jefferson County, Wisconsin. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDAINED AS FOLLOWS: 

That the above-described real estate shall be zoned as the Single-Family Residential (SR-4) 

Zoning District. 

SECTION 2.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent with the provisions of this ordinance 

are hereby repealed. 

SECTION 3.  This ordinance shall take effect and be in force the day after its passage and 

publication. 

 

DATE:    

READING: 1ST 2ND ADOPTED    

 YES NO YES NO  

DAVIS      
 

LAMPE     
CITY CLERK/TREASURER 

BOARD      

BARTZ     
APPROVED    

BLANKE      

SMITH      
 

SCHMID     
MAYOR 

WETZEL      

MOLDENHAUER      

MAYOR 
MCFARLAND 

     

TOTAL 
     

 

113

Section 3, Item H.



!
!

!

!

!

!

! ! !

!

! !

!
!

!
!

!

!!

! !

!

!

!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!
! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! !
! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! ! !

!
!

!

!

!
!

! ! !

!
!

!
!

!

!!

!
!

!
!

!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

! !
!

!

!

!!!

!

!
!

!
! !

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

! ! !
!

! ! !

! !

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

! !

!
!

!!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!
!

!!!

!
!

!
!

!

!!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!

!

! !

!
!

! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

! !
!

!
!

!

! ! !

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!!!!!!!

!
!

!

!
!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!!!

!
!

!

!

!!
!

!!

!
!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

! !

!

! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! !

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!!!! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!!!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!!
!

!
!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
! !

!

! !
!

!

!

!

! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
! !

!

!

!

!

! ! !

!
!

!

!!!
!
!!

!!!
!
! !

!! !

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!
!

!
!!

!!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!!

!
!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!! !!! !!! !!!

!
!!

!! !
! !
!

!!!
!!
!

!!!
! !
!

!! !!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!!!!!!!!
!!
!

!
!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!

!
!
!!

!

!

!!
!!
!

!
!!

!!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!!

!!!
!!
!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!! !!!

!!
!

!!!

!!!
!!
!

!!!

!
!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!!!

!!
!

!!
!

!!!
!!
!

!
!!

!
!!

!!!
!!
!

!
!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!!

!!
!

!!
!

! !
!

!!!
!!!

!
!!

!!
!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!!!!
!

!!!!!!!!
!

!!!
!!
!

!!! !
! !

!! !
!
! !

! !!
!
!!

!!!

!!!!!!!

!!
!
!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!!
!

!
!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!
!

!
!!

!!
!

!!! !!! !!! !!!

!!!! !!!!

!!!

!

!!!

!!
!

!!!
!! !!!

!
!
!!

!!!!

!!

!!
! !!! !!! !!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!!

Town of Emmet
Town of Shields

Town of Watertown

Town of Watertown

Jefferson
County

Dodge
County

Silver Creek

Rock River

Ro
ck

Ri
ver

Ro
ck

River

W
elsh Rd

High Rd

Provimi Rd

Ha
nc

oc
k R

d

S 1
2t

h S
t

Gopher Hill Rd

Church St

Beryl Dr

Clark St

S 3
rd

 St

Rive
r D

r

Western AveGypsy Rd

So
ut

h R
d

S W
ate

r S
t

W Main St

West St

Summit Ave

N 4th St

Milfo
rd St

Air Park Dr

2n
dS

tre
et

RdN W
ater St

Hall St

Turf
Dr

Juneau St

Hilltop Rd

Ai
rp

or
t R

d

Horseshoe Rd

JeffersonRd

River Rd

")E

")CW

UV16

")D

")M

")Q

")K

")T

")A

")R

UV26

")E

")X

UV19

")Y

2

7

1

20 23

29

22

26

11

27

35

18

19

1415

30

21

6

28

13

12

20

36

25

19

24

22 2321

151617
14

18

24

31

13

24

13

8

10

5

Shapes on map represent general recommendations for future land use. 
Actual boundaries between different land use types and associated zoning 
districts may vary somewhat from representations on this map. Not all 
lands shown in a future developed land use category are immediately 
appropriate for development, rezoning, or subdivision. 
Environmental Corridors depicted on this map use generalized boundaries
of  environmental features identified by the DNR. Actual Environmental 
Corridor boundaries are to be refined through detailed on-site investigation.

Future Land Use
Urban Area

Map
6b

City of Watertown Comprehensive Plan
Land Use Categories

Shaping places, shaping change

VANDEWALLE &ASSOCIATES INC.

*Each "Planned Mixed Use Area"
  may include mix of:
     1. Office
     2. Multi-Family Residential
     3. Mixed Industrial
     4. Commerical Services/Retail
     5. Institutional
     6. Parks & Recreation

Planned Neighborhood** Draft: August 7, 2019
Source:  WisDNR, FEMA,

              City of Watertown,
              Dodge Co. LIO &

              Jefferson Co. LIO, V&A
Institutional

**"Planned Neighborhoods" should include a mix
   of the following:
     1. Single-Family - Sewered (predominant land use)
     2. Two-family Residential
     3. Multi-Family Residential
     4. Institutional
     5. Neighborhood Mixed Use
     6. Parks & Recreation

Agricultural

Multi-Family Residential

Planned Mixed Use*

Rights-of-Way
Neighborhood Mixed Use

Single-Family Residential - Unsewered
Single-Family Residential - Sewered
Two-Family Residential

Airport .0 0.5 10.25
Miles

!!
!

!!! !!

!

!!!!!! City Growth Area

!!
!

!!! !!

!

!!!!!! City Periphery Areas

City/Town IGA**

City of Watertown
Growth Area*

City of Watertown
And Town of Emmet
Intergovernmental 

Agreement**

1
2

345
6

1 2
345

6

Parks & Recreation
Environmental Corridor
Surface Water

Mixed Industrial

Central Mixed Use
Riverside Mixed Use***

***Each "Riverside Mixed Use Area"
  may include mix of:
     1. Office
     2. Single-Family - Sewered
     3. Two-Family Residential
     4. Multi-Family Residential
     5. Commerical Services/Retail
     6. Institutional
     7. Parks & Recreation

1 2
3
456

7

City of Watertown
Town Boundary! !

Parcel
Railroad

! ! Watertown Urban Service Area
Watertown Long Range Growth Area

Maximum Building Elevation
b/t 865 and 968 ft

Airport Height Limitations

Maximum Building Elevation
b/t 968 and 1005 ft

114

Section 3, Item H.

BZirbes
Callout
Proposed Gremar LLC Annexation


	Top
	Section 2, Item A.	Review and take action: Site Plan Review minutes dated June 10, 2024
	Site Plan Minutes June 10, 2024

	Section 3, Item A.	Conduct public hearing: 510 Cole Street – Conditional Use Permit (CUP) request for Indoor Institutional for a Catholic high school under Section § 550-25B(2)(d)
	510 Cole  Street Indoor Institutional June 2024

	Section 3, Item B.	Review and take action: 510 Cole Street – Conditional Use Permit (CUP) request for Indoor Institutional for a Catholic high school under Section § 550-25B(2)(d)
	510 Cole Street CUP Staff Report
	510 Cole Street CUP Request 2024
	510 Cole St - Locational Map
	510 Cole St - Comp Plan Map

	Section 3, Item C.	Review and take action: 1014 S. Second Street – Preliminary Certified Survey Map (CSM) Review)
	1014 S Second St CSM Staff Report
	1014 S Second Street CSM
	1014 S Second St - Locational Map
	1014 S Second St - Comp Plan Map

	Section 3, Item D.	Review and take action: 1819 River Drive 50’ x 60’ Airplane Hangar
	1819 River Dr Airport Lease Staff Report
	David Hoefgen hangar
	Sealed American Rentals - Prints 2024
	Sealed American Rentals - COMcheck
	All Hangers Map
	Sealed American Rentals - Trusses

	Section 3, Item E.	Review and take action: 1832 River Drive 66’ x 64’ Airplane Hangar
	1832 River Dr Airport Lease Staff Report
	1832 River Drive Airplane Hangar Information
	All Hangers Map

	Section 3, Item F.	Initial Review and take action:  Amend Hunter Oaks Planned Unit Development – General Development Plan (PUD-GDP)
	Hunter Oaks PUD Amend Initial Review Staff Report
	Petition to Amend PUD_GDP Hunter Oaks 5.20.24
	GEN PLAN-Hunter Oaks_2024-05-17
	SITE PLAN_2024-05-17-AREA Cb
	2023-04-14-HUNTER OAKS_GDP
	Harper 1423
	Quinn 1542
	Lennox 1519
	Parker 1309
	Madison 1545
	Hunter Oaks Amend PUD - Comp Plan Map

	Section 3, Item G.	Review and make recommendation: Jones Street Discontinuance of Public Way
	Jones St Discontinuance of Public Way Staff Report
	Initial Resolution to Discontinue Public Way - Jones St
	Exhibit A

	Section 3, Item H.	Review and make recommendation: Gremar, LLC Annexation recommendation of Ordinance and scheduling public hearing
	County Road A Annexation Staff Report
	County Road A Annexation Gremar LLC Information
	Annexation Petition 5_20_24_
	Petition for Annexation Form _ Electors
	Gremar LLC Annexation - Locational Map
	Annexation Ordinance Gremar LLC 2024
	Gremar LLC Annexation - Comp Plan Map

	Bottom

